BY-LAWS
OF
HIGH POINT ASSOCIATION
FOR
HIGH POINT
STRONGSVILLE, OHIO



HIGH POINT

BY-LAWS OF HIGH POINT ASSOCIATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u>Page No.</u>
ARTICLE I	Definitions	3
ARTICLE II	Membership	4
ARTICLE III	Voting Rights	5
ARTICLE IV	Property Rights and Rights of Enjoyment	5
ARTICLE V	General Powers of the Association	6
ARTICLE VI	Board of Trustees	8
ARTICLE VII	Officers	11
ARTICLE VIII	Meetings of Members	12
ARTICLE IX	Proxies	14
ARTICLE X	Determination and Payment of Assessments	14
ARTICLE XI	Amendments	16
ARTICLE XII	General Provisions	17

BY-LAWS OF HIGH POINT ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.

"Association" shall mean and refer to the High Point Association, a non-profit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Ohio.

Section 2.

"The Properties" shall mean and refer to High Point Subdivisions 1 through 4, and the Unit Cluster Parcels appurtenant thereto as described in the recorded Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions and such additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Association as provided in Article V, Section 6 of these By-Laws.

Section 3.

"Common Properties" shall mean and refer to those areas of land shown on any recorded subdivision plat of the Properties and intended to be devoted to the common use and enjoyment of the Owners and Properties.

Section 4.

"Living Unit" shall mean and refer to any building, or any portion of a building, or any unit of Condominium Property, situated within the Properties, designed and intended for use and occupancy as a residence by a single family.

Section 5.

"Lot: shall mean and refer to any sublot shown upon any recorded subdivision plat of The Properties with the exception of Common Properties as heretofore defined.

Section 6.

"Unit Cluster Parcel" shall mean and refer to those areas of land shown on the plat of the Properties and intended to be devoted to the uses allowed by Section 1125.60 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Strongsville, or any other successor ordinance regulating Single Family Detached Housing and Cluster Developments.

Section 7.

"Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one of more persons or entities, of the fee simple title to any Lot of Living Unit situated upon the Properties, but shall not mean or refer to the mortgagee thereof unless and until such mortgagee has acquired title pursuant to foreclosure, or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure. The term "Owner of a Unit Cluster Parcel" shall include any Condominium Association or other entity organized pursuant to Chapter 5311 or the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 8.

"The Developer" shall mean and refer to CASA DEVELOPMENT CO., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Ohio, and its successors and assigns, including but not limited to Parkview Corp. and/or the Ancrist Development Company, both corporations organized and existing under the laws of the State of Ohio.

ARTICLE II

MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Membership.

Each person or entity who is a record Owner of a fee or undivided fee simple interest in any Lot or Living Unit shall automatically be a Member of the Associations, provided that any such person or entity who holds such interest merely as a security for the payment of money or performance of an obligation shall not be a Member. When more than one person holds such interest or interests, voting, consenting and all other rights of Membership, such persons shall collectively be counted as a single Member, and entitled to one (1) vote for each exercised as they among themselves deem. Each member shall be jointly and severally liable for the payment of the assessments hereinafter provided with respect to such Lot of Living Unit.

Section 2. Rights Subject to Payment of Assessments.

The rights of membership are subject to the payment of annual and special assessments levied by the Association, the obligation of which assessments is imposed against each Owner of and becomes a lien upon the property against which such assessments are made as provided by Article V of the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions to which The Properties are subject.

Section 3. Suspension of Membership Rights.

The membership rights of any person whose interest in The Properties is subject to assessments under Section 2 of this Article II, whether or not he be personally obligated to pay such assessments, may be suspended by action of the Trustees during the period when the assessments remain unpaid; but, upon payment of such assessments, his

rights and privileges shall be automatically restored. If the Trustees have adopted and published rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Properties and facilities, and the personal conduct of any person thereon, as provided in Article V, Section 2 of these By-Laws, they may in their discretion, suspend the rights of any such person for violation of such rules and regulation for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days.

ARTICLE III

VOTING RIGHTS

Section 1. Classes of Membership.

The Association (until December 31, 1982, and thereafter until the occurrence of the event specified below) shall have two classes of voting Membership:

CLASS A: Class A Members shall be all Members with the exception of the Developer. Class A Members shall be entitled to one vote for each Lot of Living Unit owned by them.

Class B: The Class B Member shall be the Developer. The Class B Member shall be entitled to three votes for each Lot of Living Unit owned by it provided that the Class B Membership shall cease and become converted to a Class A Membership on the happening of the following event:

When (but not before December 31, 1982) the total votes outstanding in the Class A Membership equal the total votes outstanding in the Class B Membership as computed upon the basis set forth above.

From and after the happening of the said event, the Class B Member shall be deemed to be a Class A Member and entitled to one vote for each Lot of Living Unit owned by it.

ARTICLE IV

PROPERTY RIGHTS AND RIGHT OF ENJOYMENT

Section 1. Right of Enjoyment.

Each Member shall be entitled to the use and enjoyment of the Common Properties as provided by Article IV of the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions applicable to The Properties.

Section 2. Delegation of Rights.

Any Member may delegate his rights of enjoyment in the Common Properties to his immediate household and guests or to any of his lessees who reside upon the Properties under a leasehold interest for a term of one (1) year or more. Such Member shall notify the Secretary in writing of the name of any such person and of the relationship of the Member to such person. The rights and privileges of such person are subject to suspension under Article II, Section 3 hereof, to the same extent as those of the Member, and are further subject to the reasonable rules and regulations of the Association governing the use of the Common Properties.

ARTICLE V

GENERAL POWERS OF THE ASSOCIATION

Section 1. Payments from Association Funds.

The Association shall pay out of the fund hereinafter provided for, the following:

- (a) <u>Car of Common Properties.</u> Landscaping, gardening, snow removal, cleaning, maintenance, repair and replacements of the Common Properties and any of its facilities, the operation, maintenance and repair of any recreational facilities on The Properties, a reasonable pro-rata share of the costs of operation, maintenance and repair of such other recreational areas and facilities as may be made available for the non-exclusive use of all Owner (whether or not located on the Properties), and such other common expenses as the Association shall determine necessary and proper;
- (b) Wages and Fees for Services. The services of any person or firm employed by the Association, including without limitation, the services of any person or persons required for the maintenance or operation of the Common Properties (including a recreation director, if any) and legal and/or accounting services, necessary and proper in the operation of The Properties or the enforcement of the Declaration and these By-Laws and for the organization, operation and enforcement of the rights of the Association;
- (c) <u>Capital Additions and Improvements.</u> The Association's powers herein enumerated shall be limited in that the Association shall have no authority to acquire and pay for out of the maintenance fund any capital additions and improvements, having a total cost in excess of Three Thousand Dollars (\$3,000.00), nor shall the Association authorize any structural alterations, capital additions to, or capital improvements of the Common Properties requiring an expenditure in excess of Three Thousand Dollars (\$3,000.00) without in each case the prior approval of the Members of the Association entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power of the Association;

- (d) <u>Liability Insurance.</u> A policy or policies insuring the Association, the members of the Board and the Owners any liability to the public or to the Owners or Lots or Living Units and their invitees or tenants, incident to the ownership and/or use of the Common Properties, the limits of which policy shall be reviewed annually;
- (e) <u>Workmen's Compensation.</u> Workmen's Compensation Insurance to the extent necessary to comply with any applicable laws;
- (f) <u>Discharge of Mechanics' Liens.</u> Any amount necessary to discharge any mechanic's lien or other encumbrance against The Properties or any part thereof which may in the opinion of the Association constitute a lien against the Common Properties rather than merely against the interests of particular Owners; it being understood, however, that the foregoing authority shall not be in limitation of any statutory provisions relating to the same subject matter. Where one or more Owners are responsible for the existence of such lien, they shall be jointly and severally liable for the cost of discharging it and any costs incurred by the Association by reason of said lien or liens shall be specifically assessed to said Owners;
- (g) Additional Expenses. Any other materials, supplies, labor, services, maintenance, repairs, alterations, insurance or assessments which the Association is required to secure or pay for pursuant to the terms of the Declaration and theses By-Laws or by law or which in the opinion of the Trustees shall be necessary or proper for the maintenance and operation of The Properties or the enforcement of the Declaration or these By-Laws.

Section 2. Rules and Regulations.

The Association, by vote of the Members entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power of the Association, may adopt such reasonable rules and regulations and from time to time amend the same supplementing the rules and regulations set forth in the Declaration and these By-Laws as it may deem advisable for the maintenance, conservation and beautification of The Properties and for the health, comfort, safety and general welfare of the Owners and occupants of The Properties. Written notice of such rules and regulations shall be given to all Owners and The Properties shall at all times be maintained subject to such rules and regulations. In the event such supplemental rules and regulations shall conflict with any provisions of the Declaration or of these By-Laws, the provisions of the Declaration and of theses By-Laws shall govern.

Section 3. No active Business to be Conducted for Profit.

Nothing herein contained shall be construed to give the Association authority to conduct an active business for profit on behalf of all the Owners or any of them.

Section 4. Delegation of Duties.

Nothing herein contained shall be construed so as to preclude the Association, through its Board of Trustees and officers, from delegating to persons, firms or corporations of its choice such duties and responsibilities of the Association as the Trustees of the Association shall from time to time specify, and to provide for reasonable compensation for the performance of such duties and responsibilities.

Section 5. Applicable Laws.

The Association shall be subject to and governed by the provisions of any statutes adopted at any time and applicable to The Properties, provided, however, that all inconsistencies between or among the permissive provisions of any statute and any provision of the Declaration and these By-Laws, shall be resolved in favor of the Declaration and these By-Laws, and any inconsistencies between any statute applicable to Associations formed to administer the Common Property shall be resolved in favor of the latter statute. In the event of any conflict of inconsistency between the provisions of the Declaration and the Articles or By-Laws of the Association, the terms and provisions of the Declaration shall prevail, and the Owners and all persons claiming under them covenant to vote in favor of such amendments in the Articles or By-Laws as will remove such conflicts or inconsistencies.

Section 6. Additions to Properties and Membership.

Additions to The Properties may be made only in accordance with the provision of Article II, Section 2, of the recorded Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions applicable to said Properties. Such additions, when properly made under the applicable covenants, shall extend the jurisdiction, functions, duties, and membership of the Association to such Properties.

<u>ARTICLE VI</u>

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 1. Number and Qualifications.

The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a board of five (5) Trustees, all of whom must be Members of the Association.

Section 2. Election of Trustees; Vacancies.

The Trustees shall be elected at each annual meeting of Members of the Association or at a special meeting called for the purpose of electing Trustees. At a meeting of Members of the Association at which Trustees are to be elected, only persons nominated as candidates shall be eligible for election as Trustees, and the candidates receiving the greatest number of votes shall be elected. In the event of the occurrence of

any vacancy or vacancies in the Board of Trustees, however caused, the remaining Trustees, though less than a majority of the whole authorized number of Trustees, may, by the vote of a majority of their number, fill any such vacancy for the unexpired term.

Section 3. Term of Office; Resignations.

Each Trustee shall hold office until the second annual meeting of the Member of Association, following his election, and until his successor is elected, or until his earlier resignation, removal from office or death. Any Trustee may resign at any time by oral statement to that effect made at a meeting of the Board of Trustees or in writing to that effect to take effect immediately or at such other time as the Trustee may specify. Members of the Board of Trustees shall serve without compensation. At the first annual meeting of the Members of the Association, the term of office of three Trustees shall be fixed so that such term will expire on the date of the following annual meeting of Members of the Association. At the expiration of such initial term of office of each respective Trustee, his successor shall be elected to serve for a term of two (2) years.

Section 4. Organization Meeting.

Immediately after each annual meeting of the Association, the newly elected Trustees and those Trustees whose terms hold over shall hold as organization meeting for the purpose of electing officers and transacting any other business. Notice of such meeting need not be given.

Section 5. Regular Meetings.

Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees may be held at such times and places as shall be determined by a majority of the Trustees; but at least four (4) such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year.

Section 6. Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the Board of Trustees may be held at any time upon call by the President or any two Trustees. Written notice of the time and place of each such meeting shall be given to each Trustee either by personal delivery or by mail, telegram or telephone at least two (2) days before the meeting, which notice need not specify the purpose of the meeting; provided, however, the attendance of any Trustee at any such meeting without protesting, prior to or at the commencement of the meeting, the lack of proper notice shall be deemed to be waiver by him of notice of such meeting and such notice may be waived in writing either before or after the holding of such meeting, by any Trustee, which writing shall be filed with or entered upon the records of the meeting. Unless otherwise indicated in the notice thereof, any business may be transacted at any organization, regular or special meeting of the Trustees.

Section 7. Quorum; Adjournment.

A quorum of the Board of Trustees shall consist of a majority of the Trustees then in office; provided, that a majority of the Trustees present at a meeting duly held, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn such meeting from time to time. If any meeting is adjourned, notice of such adjournment need not be given if the time and place to which such meeting is adjourned are fixed and announced at such meeting. At each meeting of the Board of Trustees at which a quorum is present, all questions and business shall be determined by the majority vote of those present, except as may be otherwise expressly provided in the Declaration or in these By-Laws.

Section 8. Removal of Trustees.

At any regular or special meeting of Members of the Association duly called, at which a quorum shall be present, any one or more of the Trustees may be removed with or without cause by the vote of Members entitled to exercise at least seventy-five per cent (75%) of the voting power of the Association, and a successor or successors to such Trustee or Trustees so removed shall then and there be elected to fill the vacancy or vacancies thus created. Any Trustee whose removal has been proposed by the Members of the association shall be given an opportunity to be heard at such meeting.

Section 9. Fidelity Bonds.

The Board of Trustees shall require that all officers and employees of the Association handling or responsible for the Association funds shall furnish adequate Fidelity Bonds. The premiums on such bonds shall be paid by the Association and shall be a common expense.

Section 10. Indemnification of Trustees.

Each Trustee shall be indemnified by the Owners against all expenses and liabilities, including attorney's fees, reasonably incurred or imposed upon him in connection with any proceeding to which he may be a party, or which he may become involved, solely by reason of his being or having been a Trustee, or any settlement thereof, whether or not he is a Trustee at the time the expenses are incurred, except in such cases wherein the Trustee is adjudged guilty of willful misfeasance or malfeasance in the performance of his duties, provided, that in the event of a settlement, the indemnification shall apply only when the Board of Trustees approves such settlement and reimbursement as being for the best interests of the Board of Trustees and the Association.

ARTICLE VII

OFFICERS

Section 1. Election and Designation of Officers.

The Board of Trustees shall elect a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary and a treasurer. The Board of Trustees may also appoint an Assistant Treasurer, an Assistant Secretary and such other officers as in their judgment may be necessary. The President and the Treasurer shall be members of the Board of Trustees and all officers shall be Members of the Association.

Section 2. Term of Office; Vacancies.

The officers of the Association shall hold office until the next organizational meeting of the Board of Trustees and until their successors are elected, except in the case of resignation, removal from office or death. The Board of Trustees may remove any offices at any time with or without cause by a majority vote of the Trustees then in office. Any vacancy in any office may be filled by the Board of Trustees.

Section 3. The President.

The President shall preside at all meeting of the Board of Trustees, shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board of Trustees are carried out and shall sign all notes, checks, leases, mortgages, deeds and all other written instruments, which shall be countersigned as provided below.

Section 4. The Vice President.

The Vice-President shall perform all the duties of the President in his absence.

Section 5. The Secretary.

The Secretary shall be ex officio the secretary of the Board of Trustee, shall record the votes and keep minutes of all proceeding in a book to be kept for the purpose. He shall sign all certificates of membership. He shall keep the records of the Association. He shall record in a book kept for that purpose the names of all Members of the Association together with their addresses as registered by such members. He shall countersign all leases, mortgages, deeds and all other written instruments, along with the President, or in his absence, the Vice-President.

Section 6. The Treasurer.

The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Trustees, provided, however, that a resolution of the Board of Trustees shall not be

necessary for disbursements made in the ordinary course of business conducted within the limits of a budget adopted by the Board. The Treasurer shall sign all checks and notes of the Association, provided that such checks and notes shall also be signed by the President, or in his absence, by the Vice-President.

The Treasurer shall keep proper books of account and cause an annual audit of the Association books to be made by a certified public accountant at the completion of each fiscal year. He shall prepare an annual budget and an annual balance sheet statement and the budget and balance sheet statement shall be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting.

Section 7. Other Officers.

The Assistant Secretary and Assistant Treasurer, if any, and any other officers which the Board of Trustees may appoint shall, respectively, have such authority and perform such duties as may be determined by the Board of Trustees.

Section 8. Delegation of Authority and Duties.

The Board of Trustees is authorized to delegate the authority and duties of any officer to any other officer and generally to control the action of the officer and to require the performance of duties in addition to those mentioned herein.

ARTICLE VIII

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1. Annual Meeting.

The regular annual meeting of the Members shall be held on the third Saturday of the month on January in each year at ten o'clock a.m. or at such other time as may be designated in the notice of such meeting.

Section 2. Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the Members for any purpose may be called at any time by the President, the Vice-President, the Secretary or the Treasurer, or by any two or more Members of the Board of Trustees, or upon written request of the Members who have a right to vote one-fourth of all the votes of the entire membership or who have a right to vote one-fourth of the votes of the Class A membership.

Section 3. Notice of Meetings.

Not less than seven (7) nor more than sixty (60) days before the day fixed for a meeting of the Members of the Association, written notice stating the time, place and purpose of such meeting shall be given by or at the direction of the Secretary of the

Association or any other person or persons required or permitted by these By-Laws to give such notice. The notice shall be given by personal delivery or by mail to each Member of the Association who is an Owner of record of a Lot or Living Unit located in The Properties as of the day next preceding the on which notice is given. If mailed, the notice shall be addressed to the Member of the Association at their respective addresses as they appear on the records of the Association. Notice of the time, place and purpose of any meeting of Members of the Association may be waived in writing, either before or after the holding of such meeting, by any Member of the Association, which writing shall be filed with or entered upon the records of the meeting. The attendance of any Member of the Association at any such meeting without protesting, prior to or at the commencement of the meeting, shall be deemed to be a waiver by him of notice of such meeting.

Section 4. Quorum; Adjournment.

Except as may be otherwise provided by law of by the Declaration, at any meeting of the Members of the Association, the Members of the Association entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power of the Association present in person or by proxy shall constitute a quorum for such meeting, provided, however, that the Members of the Association entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power represented at a meeting of Members, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn such meeting from time to time. If any meeting is adjourned, notice of such adjournment need not be given if the time and place to which such meeting is adjourned are fixed and announced at such meeting.

Section 5. Majority Vote.

The vote of a majority at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be binding upon all Members for all purposes except where in the Declaration, or these By-Laws or by law, a higher percentage vote is required.

Section 6. Order of Business.

The order of business of meetings of the Members of the Association shall be as follows:

- (1) Calling of meeting to order.
- (2) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice.
- (3) Reading of minutes of preceding meeting.
- (4) Reports of Officers.
- (5) Reports of Committees.
- (6) Election of Inspectors of election.
- (7) Election of Trustees.
- (8) Unfinished and/or old business.
- (9) New Business
- (10) Adjournment.

ARTICLE IX

PROXIES

Section 1. Authorized.

At all corporate meetings of Members of the Association, each Member may vote in person or by proxy.

Section 2. Requirements and Duration.

All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary prior to commencement of the meeting at which such proxy is to be voted. No proxy shall extend beyond a period of eleven (11) months, and every proxy shall automatically cease upon sale by the Member of his Lot of Living Unit.

Section 3. All Proxies Revocable.

All proxies shall be revocable at any time by actual notice to the Secretary of the Association by the Member making such designation. Notice to the Association is writing or in open meeting of the revocation of the designation of a proxy shall not affect any vote or act previously taken or authorized.

ARTICLE X

DETERMINATION AND PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS

Section 1. Obligation to Pay Assessments.

It shall be the duty of the Developer for each Lot with a house thereon and Living Unit owned by it and leased or rented to another person , and of each other Owner to pay his proportionate share of the assessment for the expense of administration, maintenance and repair of the Common Properties and of the other expenses provided for herein. Such proportionate share shall be calculated by dividing the total amount of expenses by the total number of Lots and Living Units to be assessed and each assessment shall be in the same amount for each such Lot or Living Unit. Payment thereof shall be in such amounts and at such times as may be determined by the Board of Trustees of the Association, as hereinafter provided and in accordance with the provisions of the recorded Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions.

Section 2. Preparation of Estimated Budget.

Each year on or before December 1st, the Association shall estimate the total amount of necessary to pay the cost of wages, materials, insurance, services and supplies which will be required during the ensuing calendar year for the rendering of all services,

together with a reasonable amount considered by the Association to be necessary for a reserve for contingencies and replacements and shall on or before December 15th notify the Owner of each such Lot and Living Unit in writing as to the amount of such estimate, with reasonable itemization thereof. Said "estimated cash requirement" shall be assessed to said Owners according to the proportionate shares set forth in Section 1 of this Article X. On or before January 1st of the ensuing year, the Owner of each such Lot and Living Unit shall be obligated to pay to the Association or as it may direct, the assessments made pursuant to this paragraph. On or before the date of the annual meeting of each calendar year, the Association shall supply to all Owners an itemized accounting of the maintenance expenses of the preceding calendar year actually incurred and paid together with a tabulation of the amounts collected pursuant to the estimated provided, and showing the net amount over or short of the actual expenditures plus reserves. Until such time as the Association is organized, an annual assessment in the amount of \$40.00 per such Lot or Living Unit shall be paid by the Owner thereof and such sum shall be deposited with a bank or savings and loan association in Cuyahoga County for the account of and for the benefit of the Association.

Section 3. Reserve for Contingencies and Replacements.

The Association shall build up and maintain a reasonable reserve for contingencies and replacements. Extraordinary expenditures not originally included in the annual estimate which may be necessary for the year, shall be charged first against such reserve. If the "estimated cash requirement" proves inadequate for any reason, including non-payment of any Owner's assessment, the Association shall prepare an estimate of the additional cash requirements necessary, or necessary for the balance of the year, which additional amount of cash requirement shall be assessed to all the Owners, and shall be considered as part of the annual assessment. The Association shall serve notice of such further assessment on all Owners by a statement in writing giving the amount and reasons therefore, and such further assessment shall become due and payable no later than thirty (30) days after the delivery or mailing of such notice of further assessment.

Section 4. Budget for First Year.

When the first Board of Trustees elected hereunder takes office, the Association shall determine the "estimated cash requirement", as hereinabove defined, for the period commencing thirty (30) days after the said election and ending on December 31st of the calendar year in which said election occurs. Assessments shall be levied against the Owners during said period as provided in Section 2 of this Article X.

Section 5. Failure to Prepare Annual Budget.

The failure or delay of the Association to prepare or serve the annual or adjusted estimated on an Owner shall not constitute a waiver or release in any manner of such Owner's obligation to pay the maintenance costs and necessary reserves, as herein provided, whenever the same shall be determined, and in the absence of any annual

estimate or adjusted estimate the Owner shall continue to pay the annual charge at the existing rate established for the previous year until such new annual or adjusted estimate shall have been mailed or delivered.

Section 6. Books and Records of Association.

The Association shall keep full and correct books of account and the same shall be open for inspection by any Owner or any representative of an Owner duly authorized in writing, at such reasonable time or times during normal business hours as may be requested by the Owner. Upon ten (10) days notice to the Board of Trustees and payment of a reasonable fee, any Owner shall be furnished a statement of his account setting forth the amount of any unpaid assessments or other charges due and owing from such Owner.

Section 7. Status of Funds Collected by Association.

All funds collected hereunder shall be held and expended solely for the purposes designated herein, and (except for such special assessments as may be levied hereunder against less than all of the Owners, and for such adjustments as may be required to reflect delinquent or prepaid assessments) shall be deemed to be held for the use, benefit and account of all of the Owners in proportion set forth in Section 1 of this Article X.

Section 8. Remedies for Failure to Pay Assessments.

If an Owner is in default in the payment of the aforesaid charges or assessments for thirty (30) days, the Board of Trustees may bring suit for and on behalf of themselves and as representatives of all of the Owners, to enforce collection thereof or to foreclose the lien therefore as provided in the Declaration; and, there shall be added to the amount due, the cost of said suit together with interest at eight per cent (8%) per annum and reasonable attorney's fees to be fixed by the Court. To the extent permitted by the Declaration, any decision or any statute or law now or hereafter effective, the amount of any delinquent and unpaid charges or assessment, and interest, costs and fees as above provided, shall be and become a lien or charge against the ownership of the Owner involved when payable and may be foreclosed by action brought in the name of the Board of Trustees as in the case of foreclosure of liens against real estate, as provided in the Declaration. Any mortgagee shall be entitled to written notice of such failure to pay such assessment.

ARTICLE XI

AMENDMENTS

Section 1. Procedure.

There By-Laws may be amended, at a regular or special meeting of the Members, by a vote of a majority of a quorum of each class of Members present in person or by proxy, provided that any matter stated herein to be or which is in fact governed by the

Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions applicable to The Properties may not be amended except as provided in such Declaration.

Section 2. Conflicts.

In the case of any conflict between the Covenants and Restrictions applicable to The Properties and these By-Laws, the Covenants and Restrictions shall control.

Section 3. Rights Not Impaired.

No amendment shall be effective to impair or dilute any rights of Members that are governed by the recorded Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions applicable to The Properties (as, for example, membership and voting rights) which are part of the property interests created thereby.

ARTICLE XII

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1. Copies of Notice to Mortgage Lender.

Upon written request to the Board of Trustees of any duly recorded mortgage or trust deed against any Lot of Living Unit, the Board of Trustees shall give such mortgage holder a copy of any and all notices permitted or required by the Declaration or these By-Laws to be given to the Owner or Owners whose Lot or Living Unit ownership is subject to such mortgage or trust deed.

Section 2. Service of Notice on Devisees and Personal Representatives.

Notices required to be given any devisees or personal representatives, of a deceased Owner may be delivered either personally or by mail to such party at his, her or its address appearing on the records of the court wherein the estate of such deceased Owner is being administered.

Section 3. Disposition of Assets Upon Dissolution.

Upon dissolution of the Association, the assets, both real and personal of the corporation, shall be dedicated to an appropriate public agency or utility to be devoted to purposes as nearly as practicable the same as those to which they were required to be devoted by the corporation. In the event that such dedication is refused acceptance, such assets shall be granted, conveyed and assigned to any non-profit corporation, association, trust or other organization to be devoted to purposes as nearly as practicable the same as those to which they were required to be devoted by the corporation. No such disposition of Association properties shall be effective to divest or diminish any right or title of any Member vested in him under the recorded Covenants and Restrictions applicable to The

Properties unless made in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration of such Covenants and Restrictions.

Section 4. Non-Waiver of Covenants.

No covenants, restrictions, conditions, obligations or provisions contained in the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions applicable to The Properties or these By-Laws shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same irrespective of the number of violations or breached which may occur.

Section 5. Agreements Binding.

All agreements and determinations lawfully made by the Association in accordance with the procedures established in the Declaration and these By-Laws shall be deemed to be binding on all Owners, their successors, heirs and assigns.

Section 6. Severability.

The invalidity of any covenant, restriction, condition, limitation or any other provision of these By-Laws, or of any part of the same, shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity, enforceability or effect of the rest of these By-Laws.